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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

The Directors presemt their strategic report on TIAA Tnternational Holdings 2 Limited (“TIH2" or the
“Company™) for the vear ended 31 December 2020.

Business Review
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiarv of Nuveen Real Estate Global, LLC, a himited liability company
incorporated in the United States of America.

TIH 2 was mcorporated in the United Kingdom on 19 September 2013 by Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Asscciation (“TLAA™), the ultimate controlling party of the Company as at the Statement of Financial Position
date, to act as a holding company for TIAAs jeint venture investment in Nuveen Reat Estate Limited (“"NRE™).

Throughout this repon, reference is made to the “Group”™ which refers to TIH 2 and its subsidiary companics.

The Group's consolidated revenue is primarily derived from investment management activities from the
underlying subsidiaries, The Directors do not envisage a change of activities in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2020 the Group's Assets Under Management (“AUM™) was £27.8bn (2019: £26.4bn).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has a risk management framework in place to ensure that it meets its objectives within acceptable
risk parameters. This framework is reviewed regularly so that new and emerging risks are identified early on.
The Group’s culture embeds the management of risk at all levels within the organisation. The framework under
which it operates also ensures that the business is capable of meeting its business objectives within its risk
appetite and is subject to continuous review. The main risks the Group faces are market nsk, hquidity risk,
foreign exchange risk and credit risk, which are discussed further in note 4 to the financial statements. The risk
of COVID-19 has very quickly elevated from being an emerging risk to impacting all of the principal risks
above facing our business.

Our response to the COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 virus has had a profound effect on societies, economies and markels across the world, and there
remains significant uncertainty about its future impact. The Group’s priorities during this period have been to
ensure the health and safety of its employees and to continue to focus on delivering value for its stakeholders.
While this crisis 1s unprecedented in recent memory, the Group’s business model and culture have meant that it
has responded effectively to the challenges and maintained its operational, investment and support activities as
close to normal as possible.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Operational impact

Although the nature and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic was not predicled, the Group’s Business Continuity
Plan was deployed swittly and delivered an effective response in the context of the rapid development of
government guidance, policies and legislation in each of the countries in which the Group operates. Over a
two-week period in mid-March 2020, the Group successfully transitioned from full-time office-based roles to
working remotely, This was efficiently carried out due to our global operating model and robust I'T
mfrastrucure, as well as the commitment and dedication of all employees at a time of significant uncertamnty.
The integrity of the Group’s remote access environment enables effective management of cyber security risks in
the remote working period.

Some working practices were changed early in the crisis, such as no face-to-face meetings and a resiriction on
travel, and while at the time of writing they remain in place it is expected that they will ultimatelv prove
temporary. Nonetheless, the increased use of ‘viatual® communications since the start of 2020 is likely 1o have a
lasting impact on behaviour across the industry.

In line with local povernment guidelines, certain offices have begun to return to office-based operations. with
strict social distancing rules in place and team rotations. However, the Group’s post COVID-19 approach will
include a combmation of working in the office and from home.

Communications

The worldwide impact of the pandemic on working practices meant that the Group had to employ altemative
ways of communicating with stakeholders. The Group has a significant increase in the use of video calling
systems to enable emplovees to maintain contact with members of their teams and other colleagues, frequent
and regular Serior Leadership Team emails and Zoom meetings to all employees, ongoing regular contact with
the Group's regulators, as well as communicating with stakeholders early in the crisis to provide a
comprehensive update and reassurance on the Group's response to the developing situation.

Conclusion
With the COVID-19 crisis evolving, the Group remains in close contact with local health authontics,
governmental agencies and other key stakeholders in all geographies, so that the Group can react and adapt to
anv changes in ¢ircumstances and minimise the risk to the Group's customers, employees and other
stakeholders. There are a number of ongoing business reviews to evaluate different courses of action in response
to the crisis.

Looking ahead, the Group wili review the lessons leamned during this crisis as part of future updates to the nisk
management framework, specifically when it comes to the Group's approach taken to prepare for similar types
of events.

The Group's approach to Brexit

The UK left the Evropean Union (EUY) on 31 January 2020. A transitional period, during which the UK is no
longer a member of the EU but is still subject to EU rules and remains a member of the Customs Unicn,
concluded on 31 December 2020. The UK's future trading relationship with the EU remains subject to
negotialion.

The Group’s preparation for Brexit ensured that it was approprialely positioned to deal with the significant
regulatory change resulting from the UK's departure from the EU. All of the Group's Brexit plans were
dehvered in 2019 and are operating as intended. During 2019, the Group created two new Lixembourg
domiciled entities. These new entities enabled the Group to manage Altemative Investment funds and provide
European Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID) services through its newly established branches.

During 2020, Management have monitored Brexit developments and have determined that the steps taken in

2019 are still appropriate to mitigate the impact of Brexit on the Group. The updated operating model will
continue to be monitored.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Directors’ duties
The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per 8.172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in good faith, which in tum, is most likely to promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders. The Directors’ report on page 5 contains a full list of
Directors’ duties.

The Director must have regard to:

« The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

* The interests of the Company s emplovees;

* The need to foster the Company s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;,

* The impact of the Company’s operations on the commumnity and the environment;

* The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and;
» The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses the following key performance indicators (KPIs) to assist in the understanding of the
development, performance and position of the business:

1) Assets Under Management

During 2020. the Group continued to undertake the asset management for certain real estate investments of the
affiliates of the Company located in Europe and Asia.

At 31 December 2020 AUM is £27 8bn versus a Plan of £29.1bn (2019: £26.4bn versus a Plan of £29.7bn). The
untavourable vaniance is driven by asset valuation declines in respense to COVID-19 and lower market activity.

i) Cash Flow from Operations

The Group monitors operating cash flows as a key ¢lement in understanding the performance and position of the
business. Management expects to continue to have positive cash flow from operations over the next 12 months.

111y Operating Margin

The Group expects 1o see a gradual improvement In its operating margin in the long term. Since incorporation
the margin has been increasing and is seen as a key metnc for the Group.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 Apnil 2021 and signed on its behailf by

(A jpesiss

< ARG 3DACREDFADC T
J.L. Sales

Director
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

The Directors present their repert and the audited Group and Company financial statements for the vear ended
31 December 2020 which have been prepared under and comply with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 20006.

Please refer o the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 4 for the activities and future developments of the Company
and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties. For financial risk management refer lo note 4.

Principa) activities

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The Group has overseas branches in Spain,
Luxembourg, Germany, Denmark and Sweden. A new branch in the Netherlands was established in the year.
Further details on the Group's approach to Brexit can be found on page 3 of the Strategic report.

Results and Dividends
The profi for the vear ended 31 December 2020 amounted to £636,000 (2019: £12,657,000). The Directors

do not recommend the pavment of a dividend (2019: £nil}.

Financial instruments
The Group and Company financial risk management objectives and policies, including exposures to risks are
discussed in Capital resources and risk management, note 4 of these financial staternents.

Directors
The Directors, who held office during the vear ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of signming the
financial statements were as follows:

G. E. Brightman (resigned 15 Oclober 2020)
D. D). Morton (appointed 24 March 2020)
M. J L. Sales

O. Salami (appointed 15 October 2020)

Directors’ third party and pensien scheme indemnity provisions

Nuveen Real Estate Limited (“NRE™) on behalf of the Company has made qualifying third party indemnity
provisions within the meaning given to the term by 5.234 and 5.235 of the Compantes Act 2006 for the benefit
of the respective directors which were in place throughowt the year and which remain in place at the date of this
report.

NRE may indemmify the Directors to the extent permitted by United Kingdom law. NRE may indemnifv the
Directors against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred:

1) in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of his duties, or in relation to them; and

i1} in relation to the Company s {or any assoclated company’s) activities as trustee of an occupational pension
scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Companies Act 2006}, including (in each case) any liability incirred
by him in defending anv civil or criminal proceedings, in which judgement is given in his favour or in which he
is acquitted or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any niaterial
breach of dutv on his part or in connection with any application which grants him, in his capacitv as a relevant
officer. relief from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the
Company’s (or any associated companys) affairs.

NRE may provide the Directors with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection
with any proceedings or application referred above.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Directors' duties

The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per $172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in good faith, which m turn, is most likely 16 promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders.

The Director must have regard to:

» The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

» The interests of the Company s employvees.

* The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

= The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment;

* The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and:
* The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

The following paragraphs summarnise how the Directors” fulfil their duties:

Employees

tThe Group is committed to its employees ensuring it attracts, rctains and develops its people. The Group
promotes a collaborative and inclusive work enviromment that encourages diversity, growth and development
and rewards individual and team achievements. These attributes are embedded in the emplovee’s values which
helps guide behaviour and achieve strategic goals.

Community and the Environment

The Group ensures it acts sustainably by integrating environmental, social and corporate goals. There are key
personnel dedicated to sustainability who ensure the business is well placed to pursue growth opportunities,
whilst minimising the risk of accelerated depreciation and early obsolescence within the Group’s asset portfolio.
The sustainability team also educate the wider Group employees and directors (o guarantee the environment is at
the forefront of decision making.
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TiaA Internationsd Moldings 7 - SEOR Report 2024
. Absalute
Units of . .
impact area Sustainability Performance Measures measures
measiirement
2028
For dwect coeratons 362 121
34 Electricity (sublmetered exclusively to tenants
Total consumption procwred by TIAA Intemational Holdings 2 367 121
for direct operations
Xk 3.2 District thermals |isubjmetered exciusively to tenants
Energy Total consumption procured by TIAA international Holdings 2
far direct operations - ncluding business traveliranspart 17,744
33 Fuels (subymetered exclusively to tenants
Total consumption procured by TIAA International Holdings 2 17 T4
Ne of applicabie propertes [Energy and associated GHG disclosure coverage 1
% |Proportion of energy and associated GHG estimated 2.0%
35 Direct {Scope 1 4
use gas tonnes CO e
Gre:r:;:‘.i:nsg - 38 indirect [scope 2 34
Total IScopes 1 + 2 {combined)
Renewable KWh Energy I' Total renewable energy 0
Energy MNe of applicable properies [Renwahle energy disclosure coverage c]
Intensity mektics
intensity
megsares
Units of . . Office
impact area Sustainability Performance Measures
measurement
2029
KWh f Full Tyme . N B
Energy i | year Energy Building energy intensity 14281
n | L
kgCOqe / Fult Tame Gleenf'm::se gas N ‘ gas intensity 13393
Greenhouse gas ! year __emissions
emissions Fuli 7 Ernpinyess Enargy and assocated GHG discliosere coverage 266
if‘wmtﬁ of appicabie properues Energy 800 asse sien firth dischisurs toveiage 1
Data Qualifying Notes:

This environmental performance sumenary covers 04/04/20 - 3412120 and focuses or TIAA International Holdings 2's UK corpirate activibies This incluces the
energy consumpticn for winch TIAA Intemational Hollings 2 is respoensibie under the SECR guidelnes

The calculations in this report kave been camed cut in accordance with the GHG Protocet and the carben feotprint combines Sgope 1 and 2 emissions Data has
been collected from the entity via utility batis and mileage expense claims. No esimations have been camed out as complete data was provided, Data was collected
in KWh where possible Mileage data was colected as pass. miles travelied, and then converted in to KWh using DEFRA published conversion factors.

‘The absolute values represent total energy and carbon ansing from the actvities under TIAA intemalional Holdings 2 direct control in the buildings that it operates
{Assets: Cnly electnery consumption from the London office location (201 Bishopsgate) is induded in this report The energy consumphion for the office locaton n
Edinburgh has not been mcluded as this 1s not purchased by the entty Mileage data has been collected for all experse claims to the entity, for travel within the
LK or startingfending in the UK. including expenses which are ufimately recharged to otfier ertities

jintensity vatues: Energy and earbon intensibes have been calculated using only combined consumption (WWh) and combined Scope 1 and 2 emessions Jgl02e)
and have been normaksed fy the number of Full Time Employees at the London office

Emissions factors : Carbon emission factors from DEFRA 2020 have been used ta produce #is report
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Energy Efficiency initiatives:
2020

Lighting: Reduce lighting level during periods of tow or zere accupahon Dunng COVID-19 the office has often been wtally uncccupied Enguieers have been
checking to ensure ighting 1s at minmum fevels
Whoke Year Saving 19.938 kWh

Air Conditfening: The w office use fias naturally nesulted 1n reduced ar conditioning enengy usage Howsvar air airculaton has ako been reduced when safe to
do so.
Whole Year Saving. 48,600 kWh

Low tse Equipment: Equipment that has been infreguently used has been shut down to conserve energly. The equipment, for example AV equipment and rack
has baen set to off and only restarted when required
Whole Year Saving 1296 XWh

LIPS Systemis: The Nuveen area T load s powered by a 3 module UPS. This UPS has been reduced to 2 module cperation for the raionty of 2020 This results
in & direct energy saving and a resultent saving it ar condiiorsng foad 0 the UPS room
Whole Year Saving. 10,365 ik

[Verification statement for SECR

Verco Adwnisory Services (Varco) hereby confiem that the energy consumpton reported for SECR has been verified through a trend and variance analysis There
has been regular comespondence with the date coflectors 1o review the accuracy of the data. The verification has been done in kne with the fokowang standards.

- 150 14064-3
- {50 50002
- 15018017

The verfication checks are debvered by Verco, a specialst sustainabifity consullancy. on the sustainatwity disclosures related to TIAA International Holdings 2 UK
operations.

Crag Morey
Head of Reporting for Zere {Real Estate)

[Verco Adwsory Services
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Clients

The Directors ensure they have open dialogue with clients allowing the communication to be effective and
efficient. Clients are expecting increased transparency in the levels of information which the Company fuifils to
cnsure a range of products are available for investor’s needs.

Ultimate Parent

Nuveen is part of a wider group, therefore not only do the Directors have to act i good faith for the Company
but also the wider group. AH of TIAA™s Directors ensure that they promote the success of the whole group and
educate Directors across the whole organisation.

Risk Management

The nisk management, compliance and legal teams arc essential elements to the business. These teams are
partners to the investment, product and distribution teams' safcguarding decisions. The Group mainiains a
three-lines-of-defence model ensuring best practice:

+ First line: Emplovees in the investment, product and distnibution teams have a duty to supervise and follow
rigorous iternal compliance guidelines:

+  Second line: Risk Management and Compliance teams with gnidance from Legal, assisting in identifving
and mitigating risks; and

+ Third line: Internal audit function which provides information on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
manageinent process.

Directors’ Confirmations
Each person who is Director at the time when this report is approved has confirmed that:

a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

b) the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director, including making appropriate
enquiries of the Company’s auditors for that purpose, in order to make him aware of any information needed by
the Company’s auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish that the Compeany’s audilors
are aware of that information.

Going conceyn

Given the significant impact of COVID-19 on the macro-economic conditions in which the Group is operating,
the Directors have placed a particular focus on the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements tor the year ended 3! December 2020. The Group’s going concern assessment
considers the Group's principal risks (see page 35) and is dependent on a number of factors, including financial
performance.

Based on the above, together with available market infornation and the Directors’ knowledge and experience of

the Group’s business and markets, the Directors continue to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the
annual financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2020.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Events after the reporting period

©On 9 March 2021, the Company acquired 99% of the issued shares in Glennmont Asset Management Limited,
Clean Energy Partners LLP and certain affiliated entities thereof (collectively, “Glennmont™) for a consideration
of €96,500,000 (£82.668 000). Glenmmont Asset Management Limiled and Clean Energy Partners LLP are
regulated by the United Kingdom Finaneial Conduct Authority. The acquisition will enhance Nuveen’s existing
private infrastructure platform, which manages almost £2.7 billion across renewable energy, digital, telecoms,
transportation and social infrastructure sectors globally and has delivered consistent investment performance for
more than 10 vears for the firm and its parent, TIAA. The financial effects of this transaction have not been
recognised as of 31 December 2020. The results and assets and liabilities of Glennmont will be consohidated
from 9 March 2021 the date at which control was obtained.

For further details of the acquisition, refer to note 32, Events after the reporting period on page 65 of
these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Companv law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared (he Group and Company financial statements in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (‘IFRS’) and the
applicable legal requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Under company law, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
Company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

*  select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

+ state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Furopean Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ make judgements and acecunting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial siatements comply with the Companies
Act 2006,

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseC oopers LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment in accordance with Section
485 of the Companies Act 2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continuc in
office.

The Financial Statements on pages 15 to 66 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2021 and
signed on its behalf by:

(N ans

i ZABGADBTRBOFADC "7 T

M. J L. Sales
Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of TIAA International Holdings
2 Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financial
statements™):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 Decernber 2020 and of the group's
profit, the company’s loss and the group's and company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financiai Statements (the “Annual
Report™), which comprise: the Consolidated and Commpany Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020G; the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
and Company Statemerts of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows for the year then
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (“iISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because rot all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conciusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concem.

Page 12



Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concemn are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion ar, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, censider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to he materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstaternent, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other informaticn. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and the Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic report and the Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the werk undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements ard has been prepared in accordance with
applicable fegal requirements.

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and companny and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are
alsa responsible for such intemal control as they determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers reiated to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to
do so.

Aunditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatemert when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Irregularities. including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our

respansibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstaterments in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed beiow.
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Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with taws and
reguiations related to breaches of UK regulatory principles, such as those governed by the Fimancial Conduct Authority ("FCA™), and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered
those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated
management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to manipulation of financial data to present more favourable financial
results. Audit procedures performed included:

+ Enquirtes with management and compliance, inchuling consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations and fraud;

+ Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the Board;

« Reviewing FCA comespondence, FCA capital submissions, complaints register and the breaches log for instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations;

+ Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our testing;

« ldentifying and testing joumat entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations, entries posted
containing unusual account descriptions, and entries posted with unusual amounts; and

+ Obtaining investment management contracts and validating the inputs into the calculation of management fee.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial state ments.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is {ocated on the FRC's website at:
www.frc_org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This reportt, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’'s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and expianations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

A

Thoras Norrie (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers |LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londen

15 April 2021

Page 14



DocuSign Envelope 1D:; 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA30BED4B70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

{Restated)
2020 2019
Note £ 000 £ 000
Revenue 5 92,902 101,260
Administrative expenses 6 (116,978) (104.762)
Other operating income 10 28,055 20,872
Operating profit 3,979 17,370
Finance income 11 31 60
Finance costs 12 (637) (318)
Net finance cost (606) (258)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method 18 (&) (1)
Profit before tax 3,367 17.111
Income tax expense 13 (2.,711) (4.454)
Profit [or the year 036 12,657
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company 507 11,971
Non-controlling interests 89 680
656 12 657

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 25 to 66 form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA3OBSDAB70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December

2020

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Profit for the vear 6356 12,657
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,006 (982}
Total comprehensive mcome for the vear 1,662 11,675
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 1,549 11,039
Non-controlling interests 113 616

1,662 11,675

The notes on pages 25 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA30B3D4BE 70

T1AA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 600
Administrative expenses (240) (203)
Operating loss (240} (203)
Other mcome - 1480
Finance costs (1) (1)
{Loss)yprofit before tax (241) 1,276
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (expense¥income {or the year (241) 1,276

The notes on pages 25 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF -EAA30BSD4B70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Note £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equpment 15 2,512 2,584
Right-of-use assets 16 19,534 18,400
Intangible assets 17 134,363 137,853
Investments in associales 18 79 132
Other investments 1% 635 760
Trade and other receivables 20 - 138
Deferred tax assets 21 - 277
157643 160,144
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 20 48,862 34,535
Current tax assel 1,685 32
Cash and cash equivalents 22 98 501 79,969
149,048 134,536
Total assets 306,691 294 680
Equity and liabilitics
Equity
Called up share capital 23 1 1
Share premium 24 202,163 202,163
Retained earnings 25,424 23876
Total equity atiributable to owners of the company 227588 226,040
Non-controlling interests 26 (411) {324
Total equity 227177 225516
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities i6 18,019 16,797
Trade and other pavables 27 10,985 13,343
29 604 30,142
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 44,943 34,563
Lease liabilities 16 3318 3.376
Current tax liability 2231 1,061
Provisions 28 18 22
50,510 39,022

The notes on pages 235 to 66 form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelape ID: 80931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA3QBED4BT0

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Note £ 000 £ 000
Total liabilities 79,514 69,164
306,691 294 680

Total equity and habilities

The financial statements on pages 15 to 66 are approved by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2021 and signed
on 1its behalf byv:

DocuSigned by:

Jpe et e

""" TABYADBTBRDFAIC T T
M. J L. Sales

Director

The notes on pages 23 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8D931AAG-E714-4268-82BF-EAAIOBED4BT0

TIAA Internaticnal Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Note £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments m subsidianies 18 202163 202,163
Total nop-current assets 202,163 202,163
Current assets
Trade and other recetvables 20 75 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 675 934
Total carrent assets 750 934
Total assets 202,913 203.097
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Called up share capital 23 1 [
Share premium 24 202,163 202,163
Retained earnings 546 789
Total equity 202,710 202,953
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 27 203 144
Total current liabilities 203 144
Total equity and liabilities 202,913 203.097

The financial staterents on pages 15 to 66 are approved by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2021 and signed
on its behalf by:

@WW

—— ZABS3DBCBEDFAOC ™" 7T

M. J 1. Sales
Director

The notes on pages 23 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 80931 AAB-ET14-42E8-92BF-EAAIDBED4ART0

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Total equity
attributable to Nen-
Called up share Retained owners of the controlling

capital Share premium earnings company interests Total equity

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 ] 202,163 13,049 215213 (312 214,901
Profit for the year - - 11,971 11,971 686 12,657
Other comprehensive income - - {912) (912> (70} (982)
‘Totat comprehensive income for 2019 - - 11,059 11,059 616 11,675
Dividends paid - - - - (216) (216}
Decrease in non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - - (232) {232) (612) (844)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 | 202,163 23,876 226,040 {5243 225,516
Halance as at [ January 2020 1 202,163 23,875 226,039 (524) 225,515
Profit for the year - - 567 567 89 656
Other comptehensive income - - 982 982 24 1 006
Total comprehensive income - - 1,549 1,549 113 1,602
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1 202,163 25,424 227,588 (411) 227477

The notes on pages 25 1o 66 form an integral part of these financial stalements,
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DocuSign Envelope |D: BD931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF -EAA30BED4B70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

(Accumulated
losses)/
Called up share Retained
capital Share premium earnings Total equity
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Balance at 1 January 2019 1 202,163 (487) 201,677
Profit for the year - - 1,276 1,276
Total comprehensive income - - 1,276 1,276
Balance as at 31 December 2019 ] 202,163 789 202,953
L.oss for the year - - (241) (241)
Total comprehensive expense - - (241) (241)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 ] 202,103 546 202,710

The notes on pages 25 10 66 forn an integral part of these financial statements.
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DeocuSign Envelope |1D: 8DS31AAE6-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA30BBDAB70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note(s) £ 000 £ 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,367 17.111
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 6 7772 8.250
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 6 (9} 10
Foreign exchange (gain)loss (10 1,460
Net finance cost 11,12 606 258
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method 6 1
Adjustments on transfer of right-of-use assets and cancellation of lease - (329)

11,732 26,761
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decreasef(increase) m trade and other receivables 20 5.877 {13,113)
Increase in trade and other pavables 27 8.020 4,577
Decrease in provisions 28 %) {1.235)
Cash generated from operations 25,625 16,990
Income taxes paid (2,599) (3,617}
Interest paid (242) (302)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 22,784 13,071
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 11 3] 60
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 135 (1,137) (2.460)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 17 2
Proceeds from sale of other investments 39 -
Purchases of other investments 18 (M (135)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - {245
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,039) (2,557)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liability pavments {4.000) (3.328)
Dividends paid - (216)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - (843)
Net cash outflow from financing activities 26 (4,000) (4,587)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,745 5,927
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 79,969 76.021
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 787 {1.979)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22 98,501 79,969

The notes on pages 25 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelopa 1D: 8D931AAS-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA30BSD4BTC

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profit before tax (241) 1,276
Increase in trade and other receivables 20 (75) -
Increasef{decrease) in trade and other pavables 27 57 (1431
Net cash outflow from operating activities (259) (155)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (259) {135)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 934 1,089
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 675 934

The notes on pages 25 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA30BEDAB70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1 General infermation

These consolidated financial statements compnse the financial statements of TIAA International Holdings 2
Limited {the “Company ™) a private company limited by shares, and 1ts subsidiaries (together the “Group™).

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of real estate assel management services, market research
and porifolio management advice.

The principal activity ot the Company is that of a holding company.

The Company is incerporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is:
5 Market Yard Mews

194-204 Bermondsev Street

London, England

SE13TQ

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with infernational accountmg standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (‘IFRS") and the applicable legal requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention,
except tor the measurement at fair value of financial instroments, as set out in the accounting policy below.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the reporting date and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the period. The nature of estimates means that actnal outcomes could differ from those
estimates.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand
currency units unless otherwise stated.

Going concern

Given the significant impact of COVID-19 on the macro-economic conditions in which the Group is operating,
the Directors have placed a particular focus on the appropriateness of adopting the going concemn basis in
preparing the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s going concern assessinent
considers the Group's principal risks (sece page 35) and is dependent on & nunber of factors, including financial
performance.

Based on the above, together with available market information and the Directors’ knowledge and experience of
the Group's business and markets, the Directors continue to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the
annual financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2020.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

New standards, interpretations and amendments not vet effective
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8D931AAG-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA3OB3D4B70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

There arc no amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effecuve for the year ended
31 December 2020 that have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

The accounting policies set out in these financial statements have been applied consistently to all vears
presented. A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, but do not have a material effect on these fmancial statements.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances mdicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control, on an annual basis.

The acquisition method of accounting is used by the Group when it undertakes a business combination. In the
Statement of Financial Position, the acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements of the individual subsidiaries drawn
up using the standard Group sccounting policies. Accounting policies applied by individual subsidiaries have

been revised where necessary to ensure consisteney with Group policies for consolidation purposes.

All intra-group transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation,
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8D931AAB-E714-42E8-82BF-EAA3OBESDABT0

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Foreign currencies

* Functional and presentation crrency

Iteras included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of
the primarv economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™). The consolidated
financial siatements are presented in British Pounds, which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group's presentalion cuIrTency.

* Transactions and balances

Transactions i foreign currencies are translated into British Pounds at the rate prevailing on the date of the
fransaction. Monetarv assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end ol the
reporting period and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates on the transaction date),
except for non-monetary items carried at fair vaiue, which are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on translation arc recognised i profit or loss.

* Group companies

The results and fimancial position of the Group entities (none of which has a currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation cirency on consolidation as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position are translated at the closing rate at the datc of
that Statement of Financial Position;

(i1) income and expenses are translated at the rate on the date of the transaction; and

(1) all resudting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (o the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation. or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation) all of the exchange
differences accumulated in eguity m respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwilt and fair value adjustments arising on the acqusition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive meome.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measiwred at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for services provided, stated net of value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of the revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the tvpe
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

« Fee income

Fee income includes management fees, advisory fees, transaction fees, development fees and performance fees
stated net of rebates. Management fees, transaction fees, development fees and advisory fees are recognised in
the accounting period in which the associated investment management or transaction services are provided.
Performance fees are recognised when the prescribed performance hurdles are achieved and it is certam that a
fee will crystallise as a result.

* Other operating income

Income from transfer pricing is recognised on cost allocation plus 3%/8% mark-up on certain departments to
related group companies and an allocation of profits occurred ouwtside of the TTH2 group that scll Real Estate
products.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 80931AAB-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA3OBBDABT0

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are those over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. These are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Significant influence 1s considered to be
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee and is usually evidenced when the
Group owns between 20% and 50% of that company ’s voting rights.

Investments in associated entities are initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount 15 increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profits or losses of the associated entity after acquisition. At the date of
acquisition any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable net
assets of the associated entity is recognised as goodwill. The carrying amount of these investments is reduced to
recognise anv impairment of the value of the individual investment. If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
inlerest in an associated entity the carrying value of that investment is reduced to nil and the recognition of any
further losses is discontinued unless the Group has an obligation to make further fanding contributions to that
associated entity.

Where a Group entitv has transactions with an associated entity of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associated entity. Accoumting policies of
associated entities have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopied by the
Group.

Where there is a disposal of an investment in an associated entity, the carrying vahue of the investment held on
the Statement of Financial Position at the date of disposal is removed and offset against the consideration
received for that investment, with the net profit or loss on disposal being recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profil or ].oss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised within finance income and finance costs in the Statement of Profit
or Loss using the effective interest rate method, except for borrowing costs relating to quabfving assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The Group has chosen to capitalise borrowing costs on all
qualifying assets nrespective of whether they are measured at fair value or not.

The cffective interest method is a method of calculating the amontised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant pertod. The effective interest
rate is the mate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throaghout the expected life of
the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrving amount of the financial asset
or {inancial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition cost, defined as the aggregate amount paid
and the fair value of anv other consideration given to acquire the asset, including any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Assets are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and anv
recognised impairment loss.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, of each asset over its expected usefut life as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold improvements ;;:;Lght line basis over the period of the
Furniture and fixtures straight bine basis over 3 - 5 vears
Office equipment straight line basis over 3 - 8 years
Cormputer hardware straight line basis over 3 years
Computer software straight line basis over 3 years

Right of use assets straight line basis over the shorter of
'8 estimated life or lease term

The carrving values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when it becomes apparent

that the carrving value mayv not be recoverable, and in such circumstances the assets are written down

iminediately to their recoverable amount.

An item of propertv, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Intangible assets

* Goodwill on business combinations

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the total acquisition date fair value of
the identifiable assets, hiabilities and contingent assets acquired.

Cost comprises the fair value of the assets given, liabilities assumed and equity instruruents issued, plus the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree plus, if the business combination is achieved in stages,
the fair value of the existing equity imterest in the acquiree. Direct costs of acquisition are recogniscd
mmmediately as an expense.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying
value being charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. When the fair value of the
identifiable assets, hiabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of the consideration paid, the excess
is credited in full to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the acquisition date.

Goodwill on business combinations is determined to have an indefinite useful life and is not subject to
amortisation.

Amortisation

Investment management contracts have been identified as a separately identifiable intangible asset and are
recognised at fair value, calculated bv applying a discounted cash flow method to future recurning revenue
streams anising from the contracts. The investment management contracts have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
Open-ended investment management confracts straight line basis over 15 years
Closed-cnded investiment management contracts over the peried of the contract
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Noftes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Tmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
joss is recognised for the amount by wluch the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposat and value in use. The fair value is
based on forecasts approved by the board, extrapolated for expected future growth rates and discounted at a risk
adjusted discount rate based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital. For the purposes of assessing
impaimment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are scparately identifiable cash flows.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impaimment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Financial Instruments

* Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabililes are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group has
become a party to the contractual obligations of the financial nstrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the categories cutlined below
and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting period end. When financial instruments are recognised
mitiatly, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price phis, in the case of financial assets and
financial habilities not at fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss, directly atributable transaction
cosls.

» Financial assets

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are
applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below. All income and expenses relating to
financial assets that are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss are presented within finance costs, finance
income or other fmancial flems, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within expenses.

* Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilites include trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading
or designated at fair value through the Profit and Loss account, that are camried subsequently at tair value with
gains or losses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

* Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the assct expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest m
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or lability.
The Group derecogmses a financial liability when its contractual obligations are extinguished, discharged or
cancelled or have expired.

* Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a resnit of past
events, for which it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation

using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Other investments

Other investments comprise of equity investments that do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
pavments, and management intends to hold them for the medium to long-term. Other investments are measured
at fair value through the Statement of Profit of Loss.

Other investments are presented as non-current assets unless they mature, or management intends to dispose of
them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less {(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, thev are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impainment. A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.

The Group applies the [FRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Prepayments
Prepavments are carmied at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issiing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of monev is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Taxation

Tax is recognised 1 the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly m other comprehensive income or equty - in which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the Statement of Financial Position in the countries where the Group operates. Management periodically
evaluaies positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorties.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences anising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferrcd income tax is mot accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the date of the Statement of Financial Position and are expecied to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax hability is seftled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the teversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporany difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are oflset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and lLiabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Emplovee benefits
The Group operates various emplovment schemes, including both defined contribution pension plans and
medical plans.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan uader which the Group pays fixed contributions. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benetits relating to emplovee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined coniribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privalely administered pemsion
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has ne further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expensc when
thev are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Long term incentive plan

The Group has accrued for long-term cash settled deferred compensation which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected future payments. Actual long-term cash settled deferred compensation could vary from
those estimates.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfled.

At the end of each reporting peried the Group revises its estimates of the benefit that is expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision lo original estimate, if any, in the Statement of Profit of Loss.

Other expenses
Expenses include legal, accounting, auditing and other fees. They are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit of Loss in the period in which they are incurred (on an accruals basis).
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Leases
The Group leases various assets, comprising property, plant, equipment.

The determination whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on whether the contract conveys a
right {o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

‘The following sets out the Group’s lease accounting policy for all leases with the exception of leases with a low
vahe and term of 12 months or less for which/where we have taken the exemption under the standard. These are
expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the inception of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. A right-of-use asset
is capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, which comprises the present valse of minimumn lease
payments determined at the inception of the lease. A lease liability of eqmvalent value is also recogniscd.
Right-of-use asseis are deprectated using the straight line method over the shorter of estimated life or the lease
tenn.

Depreciation is included within the line itern administrative expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Under IFRS 16 the right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of
Assets”. This will replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for an onerous lease. The Group has
clected to apply the exemption to treat existing onerous leases as impairments on adoption.

The corresponding lease liability 1s included on the Statement of Financial Position as a lease liability. The lease
liability is measured al amortised cost using the effective mterest rate method. Lease payments are apportioned
between a finance charge and a reduction of the lease liability based on the constant interest rate applied to the
remaining balance of the lability. Interest expense is included within the line item net finance costs in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

The lease payments comprise fixed pavments and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the minimum index or rate at inception date. The payments also include any lease
incentives and any penalty payments for tenminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessec exercising that
option.

The lease term determined comprises the non-cancellable period of the lease contract. Periods covered by an
option to extend the lease are included if the Group has reasonable certainty that the option will be exercised and
periods covered by the option to terminate are inctuded if it is reasonably certain that this will not be exercised,

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured {with a comresponding adjustment to the related rght-of-use asset}
when there is a change in future lease payments due to a renegotiation or market rent review, a change of an
index or rale or a reassessment of the lease term.

The Group has made judgements in adopting IFRS 16 such as, determining contracts in scope for IFRS 16,
determining the interest rate used for discounting of future cash flows, and the lease term.

The lease payvments are discounted at the lessee’s mcremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessce wonld have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an assei of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic envircnment with similar terms, security and conditions. This rate is
derived by starting with our ultimate controlling party’s (Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association)
borrowing rate. The rates are based upon the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™) System. The FHLB rates are
secured and are a normal course borrowing that Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association would utilise
routinely making it a logical rate for lease application. As there is a US nisk free rate implicit in this rate we have
adjusted for the country specific nisk free rates of the lessor based on the country the lessor operates in.
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Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distributions
Dividend distributions to the company’s sharcholders are recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3 Critical accounting estimates

Estimates are continuallv evaluated and are based on historical experience as adjusted for cument market
conditions and other factors.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will.
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates that have a significant risk of causing matenial adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next {financial vear are outlined below.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment and investment management contracts

The depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment and the amortisation charge for investment
management contracts arc sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual value of the
assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually in line with the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets accounting policy. They are amended when necessary to reflect current
estimates, based on technological advancement, future mvestments, economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assets. Invesiment management contracts are amended where necessary to reflect the current
circumstances of the underlving contracts. An impairment is recognised i the stalement of comprehensive
income immediatelv when the carrving value of the investment is greater than the enterprise value. The
enterprise value is determined by multiplying earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation
by 8.6, plus the net assets.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether
additionat taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impax:t the current tax and deferred tax provisions.

The deferred tax assets recognised have been based on future profitability assumptions over a five vear horizon.
In the event of changes to these profitability assumptions the tax assets recognised may be adjusted. An
impairment is recognised n the statement of comprehensive income immediately when the carrying value of the
investment is greater than the enterprise value. The enterprise value is detenmined by muluplving earnings
before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets.

Deferred compensation scheme

The Group has accrued for a long-term deferred compensation scheme which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected future pavments. Actual outcomes could vary from those esthmates. An impaimient is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income immediately when the carrying value of the investment 1s
greater than the enterprise value. The enterprise value is detennined by multiplying earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation and amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets.
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Development fees

Development fees are recognised throughout the pertod in which development management services are
provided_ on the basis of the amount of work completed in the period. This requires reasonable estimates and
judgements to be made. Should anv over or under-estimate be made, fees in future periods would be adjusted to
reflect this. Total development and development perfonmance fees recognised during the vear amounted to
£3,034,000 (2019: £3,595,000). An itmpairmment is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
immediatelv when the carrying value of the investment is greater than the enterprise value. The enterprise value
is determined by multiplying eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation by 8.6, plus the
net assets,

Investments in subsidiaries

As noted in the accounting policies above, investments in subsidiaries are held at cost. Management reviews the
investment at each period end for anv signs of impairment. An mmpainment is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income immediately when the camrving value of the investment is greater than the enterprise
value. The enterprise value is determined by multiplying eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment in line with the policy described in note 2 to these financial
statements. When assessing impairment of intangibles, management considers factors including the long term
growth rate and discount rates applied, and historical experience. Any goodwill mnpairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed. An impainnent is recogmised in the statement of
comprehensive income immediately when the carmying value of the investment is greater than the enterprisc
value. The enterprise value is determined by multiplving eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation by 8.6, plus the net asseis.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other receivables. When assessing
impairment of rade and other reccivables, management considers factors including the credit rating of the
receivable, the ageing profile of receivables and historical experience. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

4 Capital resources and risk management
Group and company

Management of capital
The objectives inherent in the capital management policy of the Group are:

* To mamtain a strong capital base:

* To meet regulatory requirements at all times i all junisdictions in which the Group operales,
* To ensure that the Group can continue as a going concern; and

* To provide an adequate return to shareholders

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management view the following as the capital of the Company and Group:
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31 December 31 December

2020 2019
£000 £000
Group
Called up share capital 1 1
Share premium 202,163 202.163
Retained carnings 25,424 23,876
Non-controlling interests (411) (524)
227177 225,516
Company
Called up share capital 1 1
Share premium 202,163 202,163
Retained carnings 546 789
202,710 202,953

Financial risk management

Management consider financial risk management on a Group basis. Management consider that the Group has
the following risks:

* Liquidity risk

* Market risk

* Foreign currency risk

* Credit risk

* Brexit risk

Liguidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk which is the nisk that the Group will have insufficient cash resources to
meet its obhigations as they fall due. Management meanage hqmidity risk by performmg cash flow forecasting in
the operating entities of the Group. Forecasts of liquidity requirements are monitored to ensure the Group has
sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. Given the ultimate Group structure the liquidity risk is seen as
minimal for the Group. The following are the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial habilities of the
Group:

At 31 December 2020:

Due between
Non derivative financial Due in under 3 months Due between1 Due between 2
liabilities 3 months and 1 year  and 2 years and 5 vears Total
£ 000 £ 600 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other pavables 42,909 23,250 - 10,985 77,144
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Al 31 December 2019:

Dnze hetween
Non derivative financial Due in under 3 months Due between 1  Due between 2
liabilities 3 months and 1 year  and 2 years and 5 years Total
£000 £ 600 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 31,319 23,439 - 13,345 68.103
Current tax habilities - 2,699 - - 2,699
31319 26,138 - 13,345 70,802

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Group's market risks anise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies, and (b)
assets and labilities, to the extent that these are exposed to general and specific market movements. However,
the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside these limits in the event of more significant market
movements.

Sensitivities to markel risks included below are based on a change in one factor while helding other factors
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated — for
example, changes in mterest mate and changes in foreign currency rate.

The Group has been quick to address issues created by the Covid-19 pandemic, allowing the Group to continue
to meet the needs of its customers whilst adhering to strict Government guidelines. The health, safetv and
welfare of our emplovees and those in the communitics we serve has been under intense focus, ensuring our
operational and support management teams are able to perform at optimurn levels.

The longer-term impact of COVID-19 remains uncertain with many unknowns, but the principles of investing,
the long-term growth opportunities and the resilience of the Group’s business model, ensure that the Group is
well-positioned to meet the challenges and opportunitics resalting from the erisis.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company and its subsidiaries that operate internationally are exposed to foreign exchange risk, primanly
with respect to the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises in respect of those recognised monetary financial assets
and habilities that are not in the functional currency of the respective company entity.

The Group has varicus financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash in short term deposits that
arise directly from its operations. The Group’s principal financial liabilities are trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial Liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations.

Management consider foreign exchange risk on a Group basis rather than on an entity by entity basis. The

functional currency of the Group is British Pounds; the functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries is British Pounds.
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The Group had the following main currency exposuzre at 31 Decernber 2020:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £ 000 £ 000 £000
AUD 3455 673 2,782
EUR 47238 5,713 41,525
SEK 796 125 671
SGD 390 785 (195)
UsD 4,755 3,601 1,154
56,834 10,857 45,937

The Group had the following main currency exposure at 31 December 2019:

Assets Liabilities Net ¢xposure
Currency £ 000 £ 000 £000
AUD 3498 246 3,252
EUR 38,839 7,005 31,834
SEK 605 47 558
SGD 2,698 200 2,498
usn 4,071 4,542 {471)
49.711 12,040 37,671

The Group’s expostre to foreign currencies held on the balance sheet could affect the Group’s profit or loss. At
31 December 2020 if GBP had strengthened by 10% against the above currencies and all other variables were
held comstant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been reduced by £4,594,000 (2019: £3.767,000). This
sensitivity amalvsis 1s considered to he representative of the Group’s position throughout the vear.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finrancial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obtigation. The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents held at banks and trade receivables. The Company’s subsidiaries' main
customiers are property owning companies. Cash balances are held with high credit quality financial institutions
(BBB+ grade) and the Group has policies to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. No
financial assets are deemed to be impaired or past due at vear end.

No {2019: no) credit limits were exceeded duning the reporting year, and management does not expect any
losses for non-performance by counterparties.

Brexit Risk

As described in the Strategic report, Brexit has caused implications distributing products from the UK into the
EU and the access to the EU and UK markets depends on the regulation of the mvestnent manager.

In preparation to Brexit, the Group strategically positioned its products to distribute its products with specialised
representation in the staff in both jurisdictions. To date, there have been no issues raised with our Brexit
approach. Management will continue to monitor the situation to be prepared for any fundamental change in the
current regulations of the economic environment.
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5 Revenue

Group
‘The analysis of the Group's revenue for the vear from continuing operations is as follows:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Management Fees 79,356 24,120
Performance Fees 3,060 8.366
Development Fees 5,034 3,595
Transaction Fees 5,252 5,179
92,902 101,260
6 Administrative expenses
Group
Operating piofit is arrived at after charging:
{Restated)
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Staff costs 88,308 72,154
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3,580 3,845
Depreciation on property, plant and equipracnt 1202 1.133
Ajnortisation expense 2.990 3272
Foreign exchange (gainsylosses (10) 1,460
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (9 10
Other administrative expenses 20,917 22,888
116,978 104,762
7 Auditors' remuneration
Group
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Audit of the Group financial staternents 645 602
QOther fees to auditors
Audit related services (2} 33
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Company
20620 2019
£ 000 £ 600

*Audit of the Company financial statements 134 103
134 103

*All fees payable to the Company's auditors relate to the audit of the Company's financial statements, so no spht
for non-audit services is required.

8 Directors' remuneration

The following emoluments were paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of the services
of Directors of the Company and other Group companies:

Group
2020 2019
£000 £600
Wages and salaries 4,646 5,670
Other pension costs 62 9s
4,708 3,763

The emoluments paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of services provided by the
highest paid Director of the Company and other Group companies were as follows:

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 4,252 3.54%
Other pension costs 46 46
4,298 3,595

Company

The emoluments of D. Morton and M. Sales are paid by Nuveen Administration Limited which makes no
recharge to the Company (2019: £nil). The emoluments of O. Salami are paid by the parent with no recharge
being made to the Company. The Directors are directors of a number of fellow subsidiaries and their total
emoluments are included m the aggregate of directors emoluments disclosed in those financial statements.

9 Emplovee information

Group

The aggregate stafl costs were as foilows:
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2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 39,885 60171
Social secunity costs 4.163 3.793
Penston costs, defined contribution scheme 3638 2703
Redundancy 15,971 1405
Other employee expense 4651 4,082
88,308 72,154

Voluntary Separation Program

During the second quarter of 220, management offered eligible emplovees an opportunity to participate in a
Voluntary Separation Program (the ~VSP”). Eligible employees were required to make an election to participate
in the VSP by 13 Julv 2020, with Management either approving or denying the election by 3 Aungust 2020.
Employees approved to participate in the VSP received cash payments based on salary and years of service,
variable compensation awards (annual cash & LTPP were applicable), subsidised health care premmums, and
outplacement assistance.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, £13,535,000 was recorded for the VSP to Administrative expenses on
the Group's Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. At 31 December 2020, the Group recorded £4,725 000 of
accrued compensation related to the VSP to be paid i future periods.

‘The average nunber of persons emploved by the Group during the vear, analysed by category was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.
Support & administration 215 195
Investment professionals 141 124
Business development & marketing 52 47
408 306
Company
The Company has no employees (2019: nil}.
10 Other operating income
The analysis of the group's other operating income for the vear is as follows:
(Restated)
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Transter pricing - related parties 20,687 16,922
Miscellaneous other operating income 1,368 3,950
28,055 20,872

Refer to note 33 for disclosure around the restatement impacting the prior vear.

11 Finance income

Group
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Finance income
Other miterest receivable

Total iinance income

12 Finance costs

Group

Finance costs
Other interest expense

Total finance costs

13 Income tax expense
a} Analysis of tax charge for the vear

Group
Tax charged in the income staternent

Current taxation
UK corporation tax
Foreign tax

Total current income tax

Deferred taxation
Current year deferred tax charge

Tax expense in the income statement

2020 2019
£ 000 £000
31 60
3] 60
2020 2019
£ 600 £ 000
637 318
637 318
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
2,434 3.674
- 70
2,434 3,744
277 710
2,711 4,454
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b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the vear

The difference between the total current tax charge shown above and the amount calculated appiying the
standard rate of UK corporation tax to the protit before tax is as follows:

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Profit before tax 3,367 17,111
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard corporation tax rate of
19% (2019: 19%) 640 3,250
Tax effect of:
Increasc {decrease) in current tax from adjustment for prior periods - 199
Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profit (tax loss) 756 708
Tax decrease from utilisation of tax losses - (119
Increase (decrease) from effect of foreign tax rates 208 {297
Deferred tax expense (credit) relating to changes in tax rates or laws 277 710
Other tax effects for reconciliation between accounting profit and tax
income 230 3
Total tax charge 2,711 4,454

Factors that may affect future tax charges
In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate will

increase to 25%. Simce the proposal to increase the rate to 25% had not been substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, its effects are not included in these financial statements.

14 Financial instruments

Group

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Carrving value Fair value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000

Other investments 655 760 035 760
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash and cash equivalents 98,501 79,969 98,501 79,969
Trade and other receivables 48,863 54,674 48 863 54.674

147,364 134,642 147,364 134,642
Financial liabilities
Financial lighilities at amortised cost
Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Trade and other payables 53,789 47 9038 55,789 47908
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold Offlce Computer Furniture and Computer
improvementy Equipment software fixtures hardware Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 942 2,836 5,650 476 1,526 11,436
Additions 337 106 441 20 223 1,127
Disposals - - - - (188) (188)
Translations (108) (51) - (17) {4 {180}
At 31 December 2020 1,171 2,891 6,097 479 1,557 12,195
Accumulated Depreclation
At 1 lanuary 2026 212 2,617 4,610 341 1,072 8.852
Charge for the year 205 88 614 45 2449 1201
Eliminated on disposal . - - - {180) (180)
Translations (108) (64) - {14) (4) {(190)
At 31 December 2020 309 2,041 5,224 372 1,137 9,683
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2020 862 250 873 107 420 2,512
As at 31 December 2019 730 219 1,046 135 454 2,584
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16 Leases

Group

(i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£000 £000
Right-of-use assets
Builidings 19,406 16,324
Vehicles 128 2.076
19,534 18,400
Lease liabilities
Current 3,318 337
Non-current 18.019 16,797
21,337 20,173
(ii} Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Buildings 3,501 3,469
Vehicles 79 376
3,580 3,843
Interest expense (included in finance cost} 395 15
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was £4,000,000 (2019: £3,528,000).
17 Intangible assets
Group
Investment
management
Goodwill contracts Total
£ 000 £ 000 £000
Cost:
At 1 January 2620 124610 41,144 165,754
At 31 December 2020 124 610 41,144 165,754
Accumulated Amortisation:
At 1 January 2020 - 27,901 27.901
Amortisation charge - 2,990 2,990
At 31 December 2020 - 30,891 30,891
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Investment
management
Goodwill contracts Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2020 124610 10,253 134,863
As at 31 December 2019 124,610 13243 137,853

Goodwill
The Group considers itself to have a single cash generating unit to which goodwill is allocated.

The recoverable value of goodwill for the Group at vear end has been determined by a value in use calculation,
using cash flows based on the Gronp’s 1 vear operating plan approved by the board, and a terminal value for the
period thereafter. The key assumptions applied to the Group’s | year operating plan are market performance and
net fund flows.

The termina] value has been calculated using a long term growth rate of 3% in perpetuity.

A risk adjusted discount rate of 14.8% (2019: 12.8%) has been applied. The resulting value in use has been
compared with the carrving value of the Group’s intangible assets to determine if an impairment is required.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by adjusting key assnmptions, such as the discount rate and growth rate.
The model continued to show headroom over the carrving value and thus there were no impairment charges in
2020.

As part of the impairment review, a number of scenarios have been run in isolation to identify the points at
which impairments would potentiallv need to be recognised. The cut-off at which each of the inputs would
create an impairment are as follows, based on an already stressed case which excludes the performance fee due:

Current inclusion Cut-off for
for impairment impairment at each
review change in inputs
Weighted Average Cost of Capital 14.76% 16.75%
Achievement of Operating Plan 100% 83.8%
Growth in Perpetuity 3% (.6%)

There remains flexibilitv within the Group’s ¢ost base to manage profitability via adjustments to variable
renmuneration.

Management considers that the likelihood of any or all of the above scenarios oceurring is low.
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Investment Management Contracts

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” management has caleulated the recoverable amount of
investment mmmagement contracts {“IMCs™) via a combination of discounted cash flows and EBITDA valuation
models over the useful economic life of the underlying contracts. The discount rate applied is 14.8% and a fong
term growth rate of 3% in perpetuity. Sensitivity analysis has been performed by adjusting key assumptions,
such as the discount rate, growth rate and the free cash flows. The model continued to show headroom over the
carrving value and thus there were no impairment charges in 2020.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised within administrative expenses.

18 Investments

Group subsidiaries

All subsidiary undertakings of the Group as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares.
The proportion of shares held by the Group equates to the proportion of voting rights. All subsidiary
undertakings have been included in these consolidated financial statements. Details of the group subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held
2020 2019
TIAA Intemational Holding company 5 Market Yard Mews, 194-204  1060% 100%
Holdings 3 Limited Bermondsey Street, London,
SE13TQ
United Kingdom
Nuveen Real Estate Holding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 9% 99%
Limited EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom
Nuveen FCACO Holding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Limited EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom
Nuveen Europe Holding company 201  Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Holdings Limited EC2ZM 3BN
Umnited Kingdom
Nuveen Group Helding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Holdings Limited EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom
Nuveen Administration Administration 201 Bishopsgate, Tondon, 9%% 99%
Limited company EC2M 3BN
United Xingdom
Nuveen Real Estate Operating company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Management Limited EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom
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Name of subsidiary Principal activity

Nuveen Management Operating company
ATFM Limited

TIAA-CREF Asset Operating company
Management UK

Limited

Henderson  European Operating company

Retail Property Fund
Managentent S.a.r.]

Nuveen Management Operating company
Company

(Luxembourg) Nol

Sarl

Nuveen Fund (Eurcpe) Operating company
Management S.ar1.]

Nuveen Property Operaling company
Management  {Jersey)

Limited

Nuveen Fund Operating company
Management  {Jersey)

Limited

Nuveen Shopping Dormant

Centre Verwaltungs

GmbH

Nuveen Singapore Operaling company
Private Limited

Nuveen (France) SAS  Operating company

CLLOF 1T (Nel GP) Related to CLOF fund

Limited

CLO¥F I
Nominee) Limited

(Nol Related to CLOF fund

Registered office

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

4a rupe Henri M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembotirg

4a me Henmi M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a me Henn M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 0QH
United Kingdom

11-15 Scaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom

Bockenheimer Landstr. 24,
60323 Frankfurt
Germany

#06-00
Tower,

50 Raffles Place,
Singapore, [Land
048623

Singapore

7.1ue Scribe — 73009 Parnis
France

201 Bishopsgale,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,
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99%
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99%,
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99%

99%



DocuSign Envelope 10: 8D931AAB-E714-42E8-92BF-EAA3OBSDYBTO

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Name of subsidiary Principal activity

CLOF 1
Limited

(No2 GP) Related to CLOF fund

CLOF il (Ne3 GP) Related to CLOF fund
Limited

CLOF I1 (GP)Limited Related to CLOF fund

Matador LP General Dormant
Partner Limited

Nuveen Corporate Domnant
Secretarial Services

Limited

Nuveen Operations Dormant
Limited

Nuveen Real Estate Operating company
{Australia) Limited

Nuveen Real Estate Dormmant
Nominees Limited

OMP (GP) Limited Related to OMP fund

UK OM (LPl) (GP) Related to OMP fund
Limited

UK OM(LP1)Limited Related to OMP fund

UK OM (LP2) (GP) Related to OMP fund
Limited

Registered office

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
ECIM 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgale,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgale,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

London,

London

s

London,

London,

London,

44 Martin Place, Svdney, NSW

2000
Australia

201 Bishopsgale,
LC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,

EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom
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Name of subsidiary

UK OM(LP2)Limited Related to OMP fund

UK OM (LP3) (GP) Related to OMP fund

Eimited

UK OM(LP3) Lunited Related to OMP fund

TIAA-CREF
Luxembourg S.arl

Nuveen Italy Srl

Islazul General Partmer
S.arl

Anglo-Smo Henderson
Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Co Ltd

Nuveen (Shanghai) Co
Lud

Nuveen Real Estate
Debt  Parners (GP)
Sari

T-C Lux Investments
GPSarl

Enhanced Debt Carry
(GP)Sarl

Principal activity

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Registered office

201  Bishopsgate,
£C2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

da me Henri M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

Fiazza Pio X1, 1, 20123 Milan
Italy

43 tue Henrt M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gaspenich

Luxembourg

Unit 22/23B, 36/F, China
World Tower, No.1
Jianguomenwai Avenue,
Chaovang Thstrict, 100004
Beijing

China

Suite 953 to Suite 965,9/F, Eco
City, No.1788 Nanjing West
Road, Jing “An District,
Shanghai

China

8 rue Lou Hemmer, 1.-174
Luxembourg

4a ree Henri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a mue Henri M Schnadt,

L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

Page 51

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights
held

2020 2019
99% 99%
99% 99%
99% 99%
5%% 99%
99% 09%
99% 99%
99% 99%
99% 99%
99% 99%
99%% 99%
99% 99%



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8D931AAG-E 714-42E8-92BF-EAA30BADAB70

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Name of subsidiary

European Cities
Partnership (GP)S.arl

Nuveen Management
Austria GmbH

Nuveen Management
Finland Oy

ERES APAC [ (GP)
Sarl

Nuveen Real Estate
Debt Partners 11 (GP)
Sarl

CLOF 1 Vanguish
Limited
Asia  Pacific Cities

Management S.a.r.l

TH Real Estate Limited

Tokyo Multifamily GP
Peld

Nuveen Allernatives
Europe S.ar.1
Nuveen Asset
Management  Furope
Sarl

Nuveen Real Estate
Services GmbH
{Austria)

ERES Europe II {GP)
Sarl

Principal activity

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Related to CLOF fund

Operating company

Dormmant

Related 10
Multifamity Fund

Tokyo

Operating company

Operaling company

Operating company

Operating company

Registered office

4a ree Henri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg

Falkestrabe 1, A-1010 Vienna
Ausina
Mannerheimintie 20, 00100
Helsinki

Finland

8 rue Lou Hemmer, 1.-174
Luxembourg

8 rue Lou Hemmer, L-174.
Luxembourg

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 0QH
United Kingdom

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
1.-2330 Gasperich
Luxembourg

201 Bishopsgate, London
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

3

8 Robinson Road #14-00 ASO
Building
Singapore

4a to¢ Henn M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a tue Hennn ™M Schnadt,
L.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

FalkestraBe 1. A-1010 Vienna
Ausinia

4A, rue Henn Schnadt, L-2530
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
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2020

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

95%%

99%

99%

99%

2019
99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99% / 99%
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Proportion of
cwnership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held

2020 2019
Nuveen Real Estale Operating company 8 rue Loue Hemmer, 1-1748  99% 0%
Debt Partners 11I (GP) Senningerberg
Sarl Luxembourg
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Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
the audit of accounts under section 479A (section 479A(2)Xd)).

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has consented to an audit exemption in respect of the financial vear
given below,

The parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary imdertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial vear to which the guaranice relates.

For financial vear ending 31/03/2021
OMP (GP) Limited - SC344934

UK (OM) (LP1)(GP) Limited - 066605589
UK OMP (LP2) (GP) Limited - 06605594
UK OM (1.P3){GP) Limited - 06605608
For financial vear ending 36/09/2021
CLOF T1(GP) Limited - SC376961

CLOF II (Nol GP) Linited - 07307366

CLOF II (No2 GP) Limited - 07307365
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The following subsidiary undertakings are domnant and entitied to exemption from audit under section 48( of
the Companies Act 2006,

Fach member of the subsidiany undertakings has not required the subsidiary to obtain an audit of its individual
accounts in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006,

Furthemmore, these subsidiary undentakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2000
relating to the preparation and filling of individual accounts under section 394A and 448A respectively.

The Parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial vear to which the guarantee relates.

For financial vear ending 31/12/2020

Nuveen Real Estate Nominees Limited - 06449110
Matador LP General Partner Limited - SC286874

Nuveen Corporate Secretarial Services Limited - 08938611
Nuveen Operations Limited - 09084229

TH Real Estate Limited - 09624720

For financial year ending 31/03/2021
UK OM (LP1) Limited - 06605386
UK OM (LPZ2) Lirnated - 066055379
UK OM (LP3) Limited - 06605583

For financial year ending 30/09/2021

CLOF 1L (No1 Nominee) Limited 08198591

CLOF II (No 3 GP) Limited 07646174

Company

Subsidiaries £ 060
Cost:

At 1 January 2020 202,163
At 31 December 2020 202,163
Net Book Value

At 31 December 2020 202,163
At 31 December 2019 202,163
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Management tests mvestments held for impainment annually. An impairment is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income immediately when the carrying value of the investment is greater than the enterprise
value. The enterprise value is determined bv multiplying earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets, The Group takes the approach that so long as the principal activity of the
Company has not changed, the carrying value transfers to other similar investments held on the Statement of
Financial Position as long as the other similar investments’ enterprise value supports the transfer and the transfer
does not take any individual investment's carrying value above its cost. At 31 December 2020 it has been
determined that the carrving value of the investment is less than the enterprise value and therefore no

Impainment is required.
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Group associates
Details of the Group associates as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
Name of associate Principal activity Registered office 2020 2019
*AREFM {BVD) Investment management British Virgin Islands 0% 30% ! 50%
Limited company
Nuveen Immobilien Investment management Germany 50%/50%  30% / 30%

GmbH (formally HG1 company
Immobilien GmbH)

Interests in associates are measured using the equity method.

*AREFM (BV1) Limited was liquidated during the vear.

The following table shows the assets, liabilities and equity of the associated entities at the reporting date. All

associated entities have the same reporting date:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£000 £000
Assets - 201
Liabilities - (74)
Equity - (136}
(Loss)Profit before tax - {3)
Movement on interests in associates can be summarised as follows:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Opening balance 132 137
Investment in associated entity 1 -
Share of loss for the vear (6) (1
Transters 1o other investments - (4
Disposals {(48) -
79 132
19 Other investiments
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£000 £000
Unquoted
Debt securities 655 760
635 760
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The investment in debt securities classified for sale relates to mvestments in Asia Pacific Cities Fund (£639,000
{2019: £688 000)), China Outlet Mall Fund (£8.000 (2019: £9,000)), and LOOP 1V {(£7,000 (2019:£n)).

These investments are fair valued with cost deemed to be the best estimate of fair value as at the Statement of
Financial Position date, are included in fair value categorv level 3, and are denominated in the following

CUITENCies:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£000 £0060
Australian Dollars 583 627
United States Dollars 72 78
Japanese Yen - 55
655 760

The table below shows the movement in other investments during the vear. The addition in 2020 relates to an
investment made in LOOP IV {£8.000). The investments held in Tokvo Multifamily and LOOP 1Il were
disposed during the vear.

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
£000 £000
Opening balance 760 631
Additions 8 i35
Disposals (64) -
Net fair value movements through profit or loss (31) 20
Translations 32 (26)
655 760
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20 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Current
Trade receivables 19,968 13,531 - -
Receivables from Group
managed funds 1,454 [,214 75 -
Accrued income 26,054 36,688 - -
Prepayments 398 591 - -
Other receivableg 788 2,511 - -
48,862 54,335 75 -
Non-current
Long term loans - 138 - -
48,862 34,673 75 -

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial assets held at amortised cost are
disclosed in the financial instruments note.

All non—current receivables are due within 10 vears of the reporting date.
The Group's exposure to credit and market nisks, includmmg tmpainments and allowances for credit losses,
relating to trade and other receivables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

The amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no {ixed date of repayments and are
pavable on demand.

21 Deferred tax assets

A deferred taxation asset ts recognised in respect of the temporary timing difference between depreciation
charged in the financial statements and the capital allowances claimed in the United Kingdom and emplover
pension contributions, short term temporary differences and tax losses carried forward. Movements in the
deferred taxation asset are all charged through the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Group - Deferred tax asset
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Provision for deferred tax
‘Fax gains carried forward and other deductions - 277
Movement in provision:
Provision at start of vear 277 087
Deferred tax cxpensed in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year 277 (710
Provision at end of year - 277

The deferred tax asset of £nil (2019 £277 000) has arisen as a result of the origination of teruporary differences
in relation to tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable.

22 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash at bank 98,501 79,969 675 934
23 Called up share capital
Group and company
Authorised
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
No. £ No. £
Ordinary shares of £1 each 600 600 600 600
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Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
No. £ No. £

Issued, called up and fully paid share
capital of £1 each 500 500 500 300
Issued, called up and unpaid share
capital of £1 each 100 100 100 130

600 600 600 600G

24 Share Premium
Share premium

Group and company
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
£ £
Share premium account 202 163 202163
202,163 202,163

25 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The company's immediate parent is Nuveen Real Estate Global, LLC. These financial statements are available
upon request from;

730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

The ultimate controlling party is Teachers Insurance and Annwity Association.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Relationship between entity and parents
The parent of the largest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is Teachers Insurunce and
Anmuity Association, incorporated in United States.

The address of Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association is.
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

The parent of the smallest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is TH Real Estate Global,
L1.C, incorporated in United States.

The address of TH Real Estate Global, LLC is:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 16017

26 Non-controlling interests

Set out below is smmarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-contreling interests that are
maierial to the Group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.

Henderson Global Investors

Nuveen Real Estate Limited Tmmebilien Austria GmbH
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ £
Non-current assets 210,184 210,184 - 7
Current assets 17,300 7,925 - 2,194
227484 218,109 - 2,201
Current Labilities 4 - - 53
Net assets 227480 218,109 - 2,148
Profit before tax 9,368 13 - 1,628
Accumulaled non-controlling interest 492 453 - -

Movements in non-controlling interests during the year can be swunarised as foliows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Opening balance (524) (312)
Non-controlling share of comprehensive profit for the year 113 616
Dividends paid to non-controlling intetests durmg the vear - (216)
Decrease in derecognition of non-controlling interests - (612)
Closing balance (411) {524)
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27 Trade and other payables

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Current
Accrued cxpenses 42,108 32,376 203 146
Other payables 2,835 2,187 - (2}
44 943 34,563 203 144
Non-current
Accruals and deferred income 15 351 - -
Emplovee long term
performance plan 10,970 12,994 - -
10,985 13,345 - -

The fair value of the trade and other pavables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial
mstruments note.

The Group's exposure to markel and liquidity risks, including maturity analvsis, related to trade and other
payables is disclosed in the {inancial risk management and impairment note.

Amounts owed to related parties are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are payable
on demand.

28 Provisions

Group

2020

£ 000
At | January 2620 22
Prior vear provisions released (5)
Decrease duc to foreign exchange differences 1
At 31 December 2020 18
Current hiabilities 18

29 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company.
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in the Group sections of this note. All trading
balances do not bear interest and have no fixed term for repayment. Non-current balances do not incur interest
and repavment will take place once the associated entity starts to make sufficient operating profit to facilitate
this, as such it 15 not possible to predict when repayment wiil occur.

The following amounts were pavable at vear end:
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31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£600 £000
Amonnts receivable fronv(payable to) other related parties:
Nuveen Alternative Advisors LLC 9.109 12,976
Teachers Insurance and Annuitv Association 732 12
TIAA International Holdings 1 Limited 276 i
Gresham Investment Management London LLC 136 -
Nuveen Hong Kong Limited 43 (57)
Nuveen Japan Limited 26 6
Nuveen UK Limited 24 6
Nuveen UK Limited - (333)
Nuveen Alternative Advisors 1.LC (€] -
Nuveen Japan Co Limited (543) -
Nuveen Hong Keng Limnited (961) -

8 855 12,611

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, carry no interest and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been
given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtfui debts in respect of the amounts owed by related

parties.

30 Commitments

Group

Other than the comunitments under leases disclosed in note 16, the Group and Company have no further

COMNHILMERIS.
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31 Leases

Group
Non-canceilable operating leases

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and printers under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
six months to eight vears. The leases have varving terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terins of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short term and
low-value leases. See note 16 for further information.

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Not later than one vear 125 65
Later than one vear but not more than five years 82 147
207 212

32 Events after the reporting period

On 9 March 2021, the Company acquired 99% of the issued shares in Glennmont Asset Management Limited,
Clean Energy Partners LLP and centain affiliated entities thereof (collectively, “Glennmeont’™) for a consideration
of €96,500,000 (£82.668,000). Glennmont Asset Management Limited and Clean Energy Partners LLP are
regulated by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority. The acquisition will enhance Nuveen’s existing
private infrastructure platform, which manages almost £2.7 billion across renewable energy, digital, telecoms,
transportation and social infrastructure sectors globally and has defivered consistent investment performance for
more than 10 vears for the firm and its parent, TIAA. The financial effects of this ransaction have not been
recognised as of 31 December 2020. The results and assets and labilities of Glennmont will be consolidated
[rom 9 March 2021.

Details of the consideration transferred are:

£000
Purchase consideration
Cash paid 69,647
Deferred consideration 13.021
82.608

Information not disclosed as not vet available

At the time the financial statements were authorised for issue. the Group had not yet completed the accounting
for the acquisiton of Glennmont. In particular, the fair values of the assets and liabilities have not been
finalised. 1t is also not yet possible to provide detailed information about each ¢lass of acquired receivables and
any contingent liabilities of the acquired entity.
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33 Restatement

In prior periods, the group presented expenditure incurred by the group which is recharged to the parent via
transfer pricing agreements net of the associated income received from the parent in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss. Having considered the principal versus agent principles within IFRS 15, the group
has changed its presentation of these amounts to gross up these items of income and cxpense, and has
restated its comparatives accordinglv. As a result administrative expenses and other operating income for the
year ended 31 December 2019 have both been restated and increased by £16,922,000. There is no impact on
operating profit or profit for the vear within the Statement of Profit or Loss. There is no impact on the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position or
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as a result of this restatement.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the
European Union (“TFRS”) which differs in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“US GAAFP™). The unaudited tables below summarise the results under IFRS and the
historical cost basis of accounting of US GAAP for vear ended 31 December 2020.

IFRS U.S. GAAP

2020 2019 2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Non-current assets 157,643 160,144 157,643 160,144
Current assets 149 048 134,536 149,048 134,536
Total assets 306,691 294,680 306,691 294 680
Non-current liabilities 29,004 30,142 29,004 30,142
Current habilities 30,510 39,022 50,510 39,022
Total liabilities 79,514 69,164 79,514 69,164
Net assets 227177 225,516 227177 225516
Profit before tax 3,367 17,111 3,367 17,111
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